
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 27, 2012 

 
HH:MM 

 
Page 1 – URA Board Minutes, January 9, 2012 

 
0:00 DATE:  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, 

COUNTY OF MARION, STATE OF OREGON, FEBRUARY 27, 2012. 
 

CONVENED:   The meeting convened at 6:45 p.m. with Chair Figley presiding. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
Chair Figley Present 
Member Cox Present  
Member Lonergan Present 
Member McCallum Present 
Member Morris Present 
Member Pugh Present 
Member Schmidt Present 

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Economic & 
Community Development Director Hendryx, Urban Renewal Coordinator 
Craigie, City Recorder Shearer. 

 
0:00 CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Urban Renewal Agency minutes of January 9, 2011. 
_/_… adopt the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

0:00 URBAN RENEWAL GRANT URG 2012-01 151 N Front Street – External Grant 
(Peterson Equipment) 
Director Hendryx provided an overview of the application.  McCallum/Cox… approve 
the Urban Renewal Exterior Grant 2012-01 from Peterson Equipment, for up to $10,000.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
0:00 ADJOURNMENT 

_/_…meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
The meeting adjourned at 6:__ p.m. 

 
APPROVED                                                            
                      KATHRYN FIGLEY, Chair 

 
ATTEST                                                                         
               Christina M. Shearer, Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 



Agenda Item 
 

 

1 
 

 April 9, 2012 
 
 
TO: Urban Renewal Agency Board 
 
FROM: Jim Hendryx, Director of Economic & Development Services 
 
SUBJECT: Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee – Increases to Approved 

Grant Request 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Accept Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee Report 
 
Background: 
 
On August 8, 2011, the Urban Renewal Agency Board approved Resolution 
2011-05, authorizing the Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee to allow 
increases to approved grant and/or loan requests when project costs rise above 
original estimates. The resolution requires that the Subcommittee’s action 
appear on the Urban Renewal Agency Consent Agenda.  
 
Discussion  
 
The Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee has been authorized to approve 
increases to approved grant and/or loan requests when project costs increase 
above original estimates. A request to increase grant amounts was approved by 
the Subcommittee on April 3, 2012.  
 
The Subcommittee approved the following increases;  
 
1. Urban Renewal Grant URG 2011-08 (Nora Fives – Old Bank Building) increased 
the interior grant increased from $2176 to $3,034, an increase of $858.  The 
exterior grant was also increased from $4,443 to $5,303, an increase of $860.  In 
total the grants for the property were increased by $1,718  
 
Financial Impacts  
 
No additional fiscal impacts as amounts were appropriated in current year 
budget.  



Agenda Item 
 

 
   April 9, 2012 
 
TO: Urban Renewal Agency Board  
 
FROM: Jim Hendryx, Director of Economic & Development Services; 

Matthew Craigie, Economic Development Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Urban Renewal Grant (URG 2012-02) Interior Grant    

134 Arthur Street (Nora Fives – Old Bank Building)  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Downtown Advisory Review Subcommittee and 
Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency Board approve the Urban Renewal Grant 
2012-02, comprised of an interior grant of $1,153. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency approved a comprehensive grant and 
loan program on February 14, 2011 for properties within downtown Woodburn.  
The program is designed to provide matching funds for exterior ($10,000) and 
interior ($5,000) improvements to commercial properties located in the historic 
downtown district. The program also provides loan funds ($25,000) to further 
these same improvements.   
 
Proposal 
The property owner is requesting grant funds to replace a furnace.  This is the 
second grant on the property, previously (June 2011) the property was 
approved for interior and exterior grants totaling $8,337 (Interior Grant - $3,034 & 
Exterior Grant - $5,303). 
 
The interior grant program is intended to improve the interior of buildings 
located downtown.  The following list is not exhaustive, but covers the majority of 
types of projects that are eligible for grant funding: 

o  _ADA accessibility 
o  _Awnings/canopies 
o  _Code deficiencies 
o  _Cornices 
o  _Design & architectural services (up to $1,000) 
o  _Electrical 
o  _Energy efficient upgrades (some restrictions apply) 



o  _Environmental remediation 
o  _Exterior lighting 
o  _Exterior painting and cleaning 
o  _Gutters & downspouts 
o  _HVAC 
o _Permits 
o  _Plumbing 
o  _Seismic 
o  _Storefronts 
o  _Re-pointing 
o  _Replacement of missing decorative features 
o  _Removal of non-historic materials or additions 
o  _Roofing 
o  _Windows 

   
o Ineligible Activities: 
o  _Administrative costs or payments to borrower for direct labor costs 
o  _Building acquisition 
o  _Improvements to non-public faces of buildings 
o  _Inventory or other working capital 
o  _Landscape improvements 
o  _ Property maintenance 
o  _ Work (wages) not performed by a licensed contractor 

 
 
Interior Grant amount:    $1,153 
Estimated cost of all improvements:  $2,305 
Percentage of grant to total project costs: 50% 
 
 
Program Criteria: 
 
Property Location & Ownership 
 
The property is located at 134 Arthur Street.  Information from the Marion County 
Department of Assessment and Taxation indicates the property is owned by Old 
Bank Building c/o Nora Fives. 
 
The applicant is the property owner.  
 

• That the property is within the Urban Renewal & Downtown 
Development and Conservation (DDC) District 

 



The property is located on Front Street, between Arthur and Cleveland 
Streets, and is within both the Urban Renewal and the Downtown 
Development and Conservation Districts. 

 
• That the proposal complies with the downtown architectural design 

standards and signage standards 
 

Interior work is not subject to this standard. 
  

• That the project encourages greater marketability of the downtown 
area 

 
The proposed grant is intended to improve commercial properties within 
downtown Woodburn.   Improving the buildings in the downtown increases 
the marketability of the area.  Investment stems further deterioration of the 
area.  

 
• That the proposal will complement the existing historic downtown core 
 
Interior work is not subject to this standard. 

  
• That the project design works toward restoring the building as closely to 

its original design as possible  
 
The building has undergone significant remodeling in years past to bring it 
to its current condition.  Replacing the furnace stems future building 
deterioration and keeps it up to date. 
 
• That building interiors are improved  with a focus on addressing code-

related improvements   
 

A new code compliant furnace will be installed. 
 

• That the project is in the public interest 
 

The Urban Renewal program specifically identifies the need to improve 
buildings within Woodburn’s downtown.  Investments in properties within 
the downtown area carry out the intent of the Urban Renewal Plan. 

 
The building is designated as being historically significant.  The request is 
intended to improve the interior of the building.   

 
 



Summary and Conclusion  
 
The Downtown Grant and Loan program is intended to encourage and 
assist business and property owners to invest in the downtown.  This 
particular grant application is intended to allow the business owner to 
make improvements to her property, specifically to replace an aging 
furnace with a new up to date furnace. The request is consistent with the 
program criteria. 
 
 

Conditions of Approval 
 
1. There is a 50/50 match requirement required for the Grant program.  Invoices 

must be submitted for reimbursement.  No grant money will be disbursed until 
the project is completed and is approved by the Agency. 

2. Grant and loan funds cannot be used for any work commenced or 
completed prior to project approval. 

3. Grant and loan funds may be used for materials and services provided by 
licensed contractors. 

4. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing permits must be obtained and 
work inspected and approved. 

5. Projects shall be completed within one year of approval in order to be 
eligible for reimbursement.  Grants provide for a single payment after receipts 
are provided and all completed work is accepted by the City. 

6. All work will be done by licensed contractors and the applicant needs to 
provide at least three bids for every aspect of work greater than $2,500. 

 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
Grant application 
Pictures  
 
 















Agenda Item 

 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney __x____ Finance __x___ 

 

                                                                               April 9, 2012 

 

TO:  Urban Renewal Agency Board 

 

FROM: Jim Hendryx, Director of Economic and Development Services; 

Matthew Craigie, Economic Development Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Urban Renewal Design Services Pilot Program 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Direct staff to return with a resolution implementing the Urban Renewal Design 

Services Pilot Program. 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The Downtown Design Advisory Sub-Committee (DARS) recommend creating a 

pilot project to provide design services to downtown business and property 

owners.  The intent of this program is to promote better design in the downtown 

area, and to inspire property owners to upgrade their properties.  Funds for this 

program will be capped at given amounts and a small application fee will be 

charged.  After a pilot period, the program will be evaluated for success by the 

Urban Renewal Agency (URA), who will decide if it is worth continuing.   

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The URA has had a Grant and Loan program in place for over one year.  In that 

time, six grants have been completed and another seven are pending 

completion.  The majority of these grants have gone for deferred maintenance 

projects, such as fixing leaky roofs and replacing aging HVAC equipment.  While 
these projects have been important for maintaining the structural integrity of 

downtown buildings, they have done little for aesthetic beautification of the 

downtown area.  The proposed pilot design services program would encourage 

downtown business and property owners to improve their storefronts and 

businesses by providing professional renderings of possible building 
improvements, examples of other similar improved properties, and creating 

basic cost estimates for remodeling or redevelopment scenarios.   

 
 

 

 

 



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Program 

April 9, 2012 

Page 2 

 

 
 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Improving Woodburn’s downtown area has been recognized as a priority for 

several years, dating back to 1997, with the adoption of the original Downtown 

Development Plan.  Woodburn’s Urban Renewal Plan provides the funding 

mechanism to implement redevelopment programs.  The proposed Design 

Services Pilot Program carries out the intent of the Urban Renewal Plan. 

 

 

DESIGN SERVICES PILOT PROGRAM 

 

Design Services are a collection of services offered by design professionals that 

can range from basic illustrations to full-blown architectural drawings and 

precise engineering information.  For this pilot program, we are proposing the 

following services be offered to business and property owners in the downtown 

area: 

 

• Drafted or rendered illustrations of possible storefront improvements or 

internal tenant improvements. 

• Examples of architectural details, such as lighting, furniture, and other 

items 

• A basic cost analysis for redevelopment options 

 

Design services are a strategic way of inspiring property owners to remodel or 

redevelop their properties.  They can also illustrate remodeling options that 

might be more cost-effective for the property owner, or could better meet their 

business’ design needs.  Design Services provides a push for property and 

business owners to visualize the highest and best use of their property.  Some 

owners may shelve these illustrations, while others may find them enough 

encouragement to move forward with a storefront or internal tenant remodel.  
Even if designs are shelved by their property owners, the City will still keep these 

records so that they can serve to inspire other property and business owners.  

 

The Design Services process can be quite simple.  Business and property owners 

within the downtown URA (see attached map) will be able to apply for limited 

design services.  Business and/or property owners will need to fill out an 

application (attached) and pay a one-time $50 application fee.  The scope of 

the work and staff’s discretion will determine how many hours are billed; 

however, each design project shall not exceed a total of $3,000.  During the 

period of the pilot program, City staff will administer the program and design 



Urban Renewal Grant and Loan Program 

April 9, 2012 

Page 3 

 

 
 

services will be conducted by an outside consultant with a standing contract 

with the City’s Public Works Department. 

 

Drafts of the documents that will be used to implement the Design Services Pilot 

Program are attached.   Woodburn’s program will be similar to those already 

existing in several Oregon urban renewal agencies. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

 

No impact.  Existing funds from the Grant and Loan program that have already 

been identified in the budget and can be used to fund this program.   

 

 

Attachments: 

A. Downtown URA map 

B. Application 

C. Design Services Brochure 

D. DECA Contract 





 

 

      CITY OF WOODBURN 

      Economic and Development Services 

      Planning Division 

 

Downtown Urban Renewal  

Design Services Application 
 

270 Montgomery Street  Woodburn, Oregon 97071      Phone (503) 982-5246    Fax (503) 982-5244 

 

Design Services Pilot Program 

The City of Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency is offering design services to downtown property and 

business owners as part of a pilot program.  The intent of this program is to assist property and business 

owners with visualizing possible remodels of their properties and, while doing so, to encourage better 

design.  The design services offered through this program include: 

• Drafted or rendered illustrations of possible storefront improvements or internal tenant 

improvements. 

• Examples of architectural details, lighting, furniture, and other items 

• A basic cost analysis for remodeling options 

 

Services provided through this program are free, with the exception of a $50 application fee.  Applicants 

are encouraged to be prepared to explain their business outlook for the future, tour their property with 

City staff and consultants, provide building details as needed, and to allow for before and after pictures 

of their property to be taken and used by City staff. 

 

Building Address:_______________________________________________________________________ 

Applicant:_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

E-Mail Address: ________________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Application fee paid?  Yes         No 

 

CERTIFICATION BY APPLICANT 

The applicant certifies that all information in this application, and all information furnished in support of 

this application, is given for the purpose of obtaining design services and is true and complete to the 

best of the applicant’s knowledge and belief. 

 

If the applicant is not the owner of the property to be rehabilitated, or if the applicant is not the sole 

owner of the property, the applicant certifies that she/he has the authority to sign and enter into an 

agreement to perform the rehabilitation work on the property. Evidence of this authority must be 

attached. 

 

Applicant Signature     Print Name   Date 

 

 

Property Owner Signature (if not Applicant)  Print Name   Date 

 



Phone (503) 982-5246     

Economic and Development Services Department 

270 Montgomery Street  

Woodburn, Oregon 97071  

Before 

 Downtown  
Design Services Program 

Through this program, 

you will be able to truly 

s e e  t h e  f u t u r e 

possibilities for your 

building.  Whether you 

want to completely 

redevelop your property, 

or just see the difference 

a few small changes 

could make,  th is 

program can assist you 

in making the best 

design decisions for your 

investment. 

See Your Possibilities 

City of Woodburn 

City of Woodburn 

Existing building 

Proposed improvements 

After 

Existing building 

Proposed improvements 

All photos and renderings in this 
pamphlet  created and provided 
by DECA Architects. 



 

The City of Woodburn The City of Woodburn The City of Woodburn The City of Woodburn Urban Renewal Agency is 

offering design services to downtown property and 

business owners as part of a pilot program.  The 

intent of this program is to assist property and 

business owners with visualizing possible remodels 

of their properties and, while doing so, to encourage 

better design. 

The design services offered through this program 

include: 

• Drafted or rendered illustrations of possible 

storefront improvements or internal tenant 

improvements. 

• Examples of architectural details, lighting, 

furniture, and other items. 

• A basic cost analysis for remodeling options.  

Eligibility 

All properties located within the 

Downtown Development and 

Conservation District (DDC) are 

eligible for the program.  Property 

or business owners may apply.  

Business owners that do not own 

their properties will have to get 

permission from the property 

owner to participate.     

Process 

The applicant starts the process by 

filling out an application at City 

Hall.  The applicant then talks with 

Woodburn Economic Development 

and Services staff about design 

ideas for their property.  Staff and 

the applicant will decide the scope 

of the design services for the 

project.  A meeting is scheduled 

with the City contracted architect, 

city staff and the applicant.  During 

this initial meeting  the architect, 

applicant and city staff will tour the 

property, discuss applicant design 

preferences and building design 

requirements or restrictions.  The 

architects will take photos and ask 

questions about the structure.  

After this initial meeting the architects will 

create a package that illustrates 

possibilities for the applicants building.  At 

a second meeting the architects will go 

over their work with the applicant showing 

design ideas, details, and basic pricing for 

the proposed remodel.   

Project Facts 

These services are provided free to the 

applicant after a $50 application fee. The 

City will pay for design services conducted 

by the city contracted architect up to 

$3000 dollars.  Any additional work 

beyond this cap will be at the property or 

business owner’s expense.   

Economic and Development Services Department 

270 Montgomery Street  

Woodburn, Oregon 97071  

Phone (503) 982-5246     

City of Woodburn 

Woodburn Downtown Design Services Program 

Existing building 

Proposed improvements 

Before 

After 

Existing building 

Proposed improvements 






















